



**KING COUNTY**  
**Signature Report**

1200 King County Courthouse  
516 Third Avenue  
Seattle, WA 98104

**February 20, 2009**

**R&R**

**Proposed No. BOH09-01.2**

1           A RULE AND REGULATION relating to fees and charges  
2           for environmental health services; amending R&R 7,  
3           Chapter 6, as amended, and BOH 2.06.030, R&R 91,  
4           Section 1 (part), as amended, and BOH 2.10.020, R&R 05-  
5           05, Sections 15, 21, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39 and 40, and BOH  
6           2.10.040, R&R 05-05, Section 22, and BOH 2.10.050,  
7           R&R 05-05, Sections 15, 23, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45 and 46, and  
8           BOH 2.10.060, R&R 91, Section 1 (part), as amended, and  
9           BOH 2.10.100, R&R 03-06, Section 2 (part), as amended,  
10          and BOH 2.14.020, R&R 05-05, Sections 59, 60, 76, 77,  
11          78, 79, 80 and 81, and BOH 2.14.030, R&R 03-06, Section  
12          2 (part), as amended, and BOH 2.14.040, R&R 99-01,  
13          Section 2 (part), as amended, and BOH 2.18.020, R&R 05-  
14          05, Sections 104 and 105, and BOH 2.20.010, R&R 58,  
15          Section 1 (part), as amended, and BOH 2.20.020, R&R 20,  
16          Section 1(1), as amended, and BOH 2.22.020, and R&R 20,  
17          Section 1(2), as amended, and BOH 2.22.030, adding a new

18 section to BOH chapter 2.06, and adding a new chapter to  
19 BOH Title 2; enacted pursuant to RCW 43.20.050 and  
20 70.05.060, including the latest amendments or revisions  
21 thereto.

22  
23 BE IT ADOPTED BY THE KING COUNTY BOARD OF HEALTH:

24 NEW SECTION. SECTION 1. There is hereby added a new section to BOH  
25 chapter 2.06 to read as follows:

26 **Annual review and fee adjustment for reduced cost of services.** The board  
27 directs that the fees established in BOH Title 2 for issuing or renewing licenses or  
28 permits or for such other services shall be reviewed by the director of the Seattle-King  
29 County Department of Public Health annually and reduced by the director where the cost  
30 of providing services will increase by less than five percent of the cost of providing  
31 services during the previous year, based on and consistent with the annual budget adopted  
32 by the King County Council; provided that the fees for services shall not exceed the  
33 actual cost of providing any such services. This authority does not include the authority  
34 to adjust penalties established by the board.

35 SECTION 2. R&R 7, Chapter 6, as amended, and BOH 2.06.030 are each hereby  
36 amended to read as follows:

37 **Late fee.** The penalty for late permit fee payment, delinquent by ~~((more than))~~  
38 ten to thirty days, is ~~((one-fourth))~~ ten percent of the applicable permit fee. The penalty  
39 for permit fee payment, delinquent by ~~((more than))~~ thirty-one to sixty days, is ~~((one-~~  
40 half)) twenty percent of the applicable permit fee. The penalty for late permit fee

41 payment, delinquent by more than sixty days, is thirty percent of the applicable permit  
42 fee. The penalty for late payment of any seasonal permit fee is twenty-five dollars.

43 SECTION 3. R&R 91, Section 1 (part), as amended, and BOH 2.10.020 are each  
44 hereby amended to read as follows:

45 **Permit fee schedule.**

46 **Part 1 — Permit Fee Schedule.**

47 **Effective Through December 31, ~~((2005))~~ 2009.**

48 The owner or operator of a food establishment subject to the permit requirement  
49 of WAC 246-215-200 or Food Code Paragraph 8-301.11 shall pay to the health officer a  
50 food establishment permit fee as set forth in Table 1, based on the establishment type and  
51 the risk category for the establishment. Where more than one type of food establishment  
52 exists within or as part of another food establishment (for example, a bakery within a  
53 grocery store~~((;))~~ or a deli within a meat market), the owner or operator shall pay the  
54 permit fee for each applicable food establishment type; except that the owner or operator  
55 of a grocery store with no more than two checkout stands, ~~((or))~~ a general food  
56 establishment with no more than two checkout stands and no more than twelve seats for  
57 customers for on-site consumption of food~~((;))~~ or a meat/fish market with no more than  
58 two checkout stands shall pay only the highest applicable risk category permit fee  
59 without being required to obtain a separate permit for each type of food handling activity  
60 at the establishment. For purposes of this section, "highest applicable risk category permit  
61 fee" means the fee corresponding to the highest risk category of food handling activity at  
62 the establishment.

63 **TABLE 1**

---

**Food Establishment Categories and Permit Fees**

<b>Type of Food Establishment</b>			<b>Applicable Fee<sup>1</sup></b>
<b>General Food Service<sup>2</sup></b>			
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 1	\$((261.00)) <u>302.00</u>
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 2	\$((435.00)) <u>503.00</u>
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 3	\$((602.00)) <u>697.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 1	\$((264.00)) <u>306.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 2	\$((441.00)) <u>510.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 3	\$((636.00)) <u>736.00</u>
Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 1	\$((270.00)) <u>312.00</u>
Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 2	\$((463.00)) <u>536.00</u>
Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 3	\$((679.00)) <u>785.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 1	\$((280.00)) <u>324.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 2	\$((474.00)) <u>548.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 3	\$((720.00)) <u>833.00</u>
Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 1	\$((291.00)) <u>337.00</u>
Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 2	\$((477.00)) <u>552.00</u>
Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 3	\$((751.00)) <u>870.00</u>
<b>Limited Food Service</b>			\$((261.00)) <u>302.00</u>
<b>Bakery – No customer seating<sup>3</sup></b>			
Risk 1			\$((261.00)) <u>302.00</u>
Risk 2			\$((435.00)) <u>503.00</u>
Risk 3			\$((602.00)) <u>697.00</u>

---

---

<b>Bed and Breakfast Operation</b>	\$((261.00)) <u>302.00</u>
<b>Grocery Store – No customer seating<sup>3</sup></b>	
Risk 1	\$((261.00)) <u>302.00</u>
Risk 2	\$((435.00)) <u>503.00</u>
Risk 3	\$((602.00)) <u>697.00</u>
<b>Catering operation</b>	
Risk 1	\$((261.00)) <u>302.00</u>
Risk 2	\$((435.00)) <u>503.00</u>
Risk 3	\$((602.00)) <u>697.00</u>
<b>Meat/Fish Market</b>	\$((490.00)) <u>567.00</u>
<b>Vending Machine</b>	\$((261.00)) <u>302.00</u>
<b>Mobile Food Service</b>	
Risk 1	\$((261.00)) <u>302.00</u>
Risk 2	\$((435.00)) <u>503.00</u>
Risk 3	\$((602.00)) <u>697.00</u>
<b>Nonprofit Institution<sup>7</sup></b>	
Risk 1	\$((130.00)) <u>302.00</u>
Risk 2	\$((217.00)) <u>504.00</u>
Risk 3	\$((301.00)) <u>696.00</u>
<b>School Kitchen<sup>4,7</sup></b>	
Risk 2	((217.00)) <u>504.00</u>
Risk 3	((301.00)) <u>696.00</u>
<b>Seasonal Food Establishment<sup>6</sup></b>	One-half the applicable annual

---

permit fee

**Temporary Food Establishment<sup>5</sup>**

Low Risk ((~~\$167.00~~) 193.00)

High Risk ((~~\$174.00~~) 201.00)

65 Footnotes to Table 1:

66 1. All food establishment permit fees set forth in this table are annual fees, except those  
67 for temporary food establishments (including temporary nonprofit institution food  
68 establishments) and seasonal food establishments.

69 2. General food service includes a grocery store or bakery offering seating for on-site  
70 consumption of food.

71 3. A bakery or grocery store offering seating for on-site consumption of food shall be  
72 classified as a general food service establishment.

73 4. A school kitchen is designated as either Risk 2 or Risk 3, not Risk 1.

74 5. A temporary food establishment is designated as either Low Risk or High Risk.

75 ((B-)) 6. The applicant for a seasonal food establishment permit, or a food establishment  
76 that is to be operated no longer than any period of six consecutive months, shall pay one-half the  
77 applicable annual permit fee specified in Table 1(~~(, above)~~).

78 7. The owners or operators of school kitchens and nonprofit institutions shall in 2009 be  
79 charged fifty percent of the fee established to be paid by them as set forth in Table 1.

80 **Part 2 — Permit Fee Schedule.**

81 **Effective January 1, ((2006)) 2010, Through December 31, ((2006)) 2010.**

82 The owner or operator of a food establishment subject to the permit requirement  
83 of WAC 246-215-200 or Food Code Paragraph 8-301.11 shall pay to the health officer a  
84 food establishment permit fee as set forth in Table 1, based on the establishment type and  
85 the risk category for the establishment. Where more than one type of food establishment

86 exists within or as part of another food establishment (for example, a bakery within a  
 87 grocery store(,) or a deli within a meat market), the owner or operator shall pay the  
 88 permit fee for each applicable food establishment type; except that the owner or operator  
 89 of a grocery store with no more than two checkout stands, ((€)) a general food  
 90 establishment with no more than two checkout stands and no more than twelve seats for  
 91 customers for on-site consumption of food(,) or a meat/fish market with no more than  
 92 two checkout stands, shall pay only the highest applicable risk category permit fee  
 93 without being required to obtain a separate permit for each type of food handling activity  
 94 at the establishment. For purposes of this section, "highest applicable risk category permit  
 95 fee" means the fee corresponding to the highest risk category of food handling activity at  
 96 the establishment.

97 **TABLE 1**

98 **Food Establishment Categories and Permit Fees**

Type of Food Establishment			Applicable Fee <sup>1</sup>
<b>General Food Service<sup>2</sup></b>			
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 1	\$((274.00)) <u>317.00</u>
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 2	\$((456.00)) <u>528.00</u>
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 3	\$((632.00)) <u>732.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 1	\$((277.00)) <u>320.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 2	\$((463.00)) <u>535.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 3	\$((667.00)) <u>772.00</u>
Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 1	\$((283.00)) <u>328.00</u>
Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 2	\$((487.00)) <u>562.00</u>

---

Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 3	\$((712.00)) <u>824.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 1	\$((294.00)) <u>340.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 2	\$((497.00)) <u>575.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 3	\$((756.00)) <u>874.00</u>
Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 1	\$((306.00)) <u>353.00</u>
Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 2	\$((500.00)) <u>579.00</u>
Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 3	\$((789.00)) <u>914.00</u>
<b>Limited Food Service</b>			\$((274.00)) <u>317.00</u>
<b>Bakery – No customer seating<sup>3</sup></b>			
Risk 1			\$((274.00)) <u>317.00</u>
Risk 2			\$((456.00)) <u>528.00</u>
Risk 3			\$((632.00)) <u>732.00</u>
<b>Bed and Breakfast Operation</b>			\$((274.00)) <u>317.00</u>
<b>Grocery Store – No customer seating<sup>3</sup></b>			
Risk 1			\$((274.00)) <u>317.00</u>
Risk 2			\$((456.00)) <u>528.00</u>
<del>(Risk 3</del>			\$632.00))
<b>Catering operation</b>			
Risk 1			\$((274.00)) <u>317.00</u>
Risk 2			\$((456.00)) <u>528.00</u>
Risk 3			\$((632.00)) <u>732.00</u>
<b>Meat/Fish Market</b>			\$((514.00)) <u>595.00</u>
<b>Vending Machine</b>			\$((274.00)) <u>317.00</u>

---



**Mobile Food Service**

Risk 1	\$((274.00)) <u>317.00</u>
Risk 2	\$((456.00)) <u>528.00</u>
Risk 3	\$((632.00)) <u>732.00</u>

**Nonprofit Institution**

Risk 1	(((\$137.00)) <u>To be determined by future rule of the board of health.</u>
Risk 2	(((\$228.00)) <u>To be determined by future rule of the board of health.</u>
Risk 3	(((\$316.00)) <u>To be determined by future rule of the board of health.</u>

**School Kitchen<sup>4</sup>**

Risk 2	(((\$228.00)) <u>To be determined by future rule of the board of health.</u>
Risk 3	(((\$316.00)) <u>To be determined by future rule of the board of health.</u>

**Seasonal Food Establishment<sup>6</sup>**

One-half the applicable annual  
permit fee

**Temporary Food Establishment<sup>5</sup>**

Low Risk	\$((175.00)) <u>203.00</u>
High Risk	\$((183.00)) <u>211.00</u>

100 1. All food establishment permit fees set forth in this table are annual fees, except those  
101 for temporary food establishments (including temporary nonprofit institution food  
102 establishments) and seasonal food establishments.

103 2. General food service includes a grocery store or bakery offering seating for on-site  
104 consumption of food.

105 3. A bakery or grocery store offering seating for on-site consumption of food shall be  
106 classified as a general food service establishment.

107 4. A school kitchen is designated as either Risk 2 or Risk 3, not Risk 1.

108 5. A temporary food establishment is designated as either Low Risk or High Risk.

109 ~~(B-)~~ 6. The applicant for a seasonal food establishment permit, or a food establishment  
110 that is to be operated no longer than any period of six consecutive months, shall pay one-half the  
111 applicable annual permit fee specified in Table 1(~~(, above)~~).

112 **Part 3 — Permit Fee Schedule.**

113 **Effective January 1, ~~((2007)) 2011~~, Through December 31, ~~((2007)) 2011~~.**

114 The owner or operator of a food establishment subject to the permit requirement  
115 of WAC 246-215-200 or Food Code Paragraph 8-301.11 shall pay to the health officer a  
116 food establishment permit fee as set forth in Table 1, based on the establishment type and  
117 the risk category for the establishment. Where more than one type of food establishment  
118 exists within or as part of another food establishment (for example, a bakery within a  
119 grocery store(~~(,)~~) or a deli within a meat market), the owner or operator shall pay the  
120 permit fee for each applicable food establishment type; except that the owner or operator  
121 of a grocery store with no more than two checkout stands, ~~((or))~~ a general food  
122 establishment with no more than two checkout stands and no more than twelve seats for  
123 customers for on-site consumption of food(~~(,)~~) or a meat/fish market with no more than

124 two checkout stands shall pay only the highest applicable risk category permit fee  
 125 without being required to obtain a separate permit for each type of food handling activity  
 126 at the establishment. For purposes of this section, "highest applicable risk category  
 127 permit fee" means the fee corresponding to the highest risk category of food handling  
 128 activity at the establishment.

129 **TABLE 1**

130 **Food Establishment Categories and Permit Fees**

Type of Food Establishment			Applicable Fee <sup>1</sup>
<b>General Food Service<sup>2</sup></b>			
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 1	\$((288.00)) <u>332.00</u>
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 2	\$((479.00)) <u>554.00</u>
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 3	\$((663.00)) <u>768.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 1	\$((291.00)) <u>336.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 2	\$((486.00)) <u>562.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 3	\$((701.00)) <u>810.00</u>
Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 1	\$((298.00)) <u>344.00</u>
Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 2	\$((511.00)) <u>590.00</u>
Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 3	\$((748.00)) <u>865.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 1	\$((309.00)) <u>357.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 2	\$((522.00)) <u>604.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 3	\$((793.00)) <u>917.00</u>
Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 1	\$((321.00)) <u>371.00</u>
Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 2	\$((525.00)) <u>607.00</u>

---

Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 3	\$((828.00)) <u>959.00</u>
<b>Limited Food Service</b>			\$((288.00)) <u>332.00</u>
<b>Bakery – No customer seating<sup>3</sup></b>			
Risk 1			\$((288.00)) <u>332.00</u>
Risk 2			\$((479.00)) <u>554.00</u>
Risk 3			\$((663.00)) <u>768.00</u>
<b>Bed and Breakfast Operation</b>			\$((288.00)) <u>332.00</u>
<b>Grocery Store – No customer seating<sup>3</sup></b>			
Risk 1			\$((288.00)) <u>332.00</u>
Risk 2			\$((479.00)) <u>554.00</u>
((Risk 3			\$663.00))
<b>Catering operation</b>			
Risk 1			\$((288.00)) <u>332.00</u>
Risk 2			\$((470.00)) <u>554.00</u>
Risk 3			\$((663.00)) <u>768.00</u>
<b>Meat/Fish Market</b>			\$((540.00)) <u>625.00</u>
<b>Vending Machine</b>			\$((288.00)) <u>332.00</u>
<b>Mobile Food Service</b>			
Risk 1			\$((288.00)) <u>332.00</u>
Risk 2			\$((479.00)) <u>554.00</u>
Risk 3			\$((663.00)) <u>768.00</u>
<b>Nonprofit Institution</b>			
Risk 1			(((\$144.00)) <u>To be determined by</u>

---

	<u>future rule of the board of health.</u>
Risk 2	<del>((240.00))</del> <u>To be determined by</u> <u>future rule of the board of health.</u>
Risk 3	<del>((332.00))</del> <u>To be determined by</u> <u>future rule of the board of health.</u>
<b>School Kitchen<sup>4</sup></b>	
Risk 2	<del>((240.00))</del> <u>To be determined by</u> <u>future rule of the board of health.</u>
Risk 3	<del>((332.00))</del> <u>To be determined by</u> <u>future rule of the board of health.</u>
<b>Seasonal Food Establishment<sup>6</sup></b>	
	One-half the applicable annual permit fee
<b>Temporary Food Establishment<sup>5</sup></b>	
Low Risk	<del>((175.00))</del> <u>213.00</u>
High Risk	<del>((183.00))</del> <u>221.00</u>

131 Footnotes to Table 1:

132 1. All food establishment permit fees set forth in this table are annual fees, except those  
133 for temporary food establishments (including temporary nonprofit institution food  
134 establishments) and seasonal food establishments.

135 2. General food service includes a grocery store or bakery offering seating for on-site  
136 consumption of food.

137 3. A bakery or grocery store offering seating for on-site consumption of food shall be  
138 classified as a general food service establishment.

139 4. A school kitchen is designated as either Risk 2 or Risk 3, not Risk 1.

140 5. A temporary food establishment is designated as either Low Risk or High Risk.

141 ~~((B-))~~ 6. The applicant for a seasonal food establishment permit, or a food establishment  
142 that is to be operated no longer than any period of six consecutive months, shall pay one-half the  
143 applicable annual permit fee specified in Table 1~~((, above))~~.

144 **Part 4 — Permit Fee Schedule.**

145 **Effective January 1, ~~((2008))~~ 2012, and Thereafter.**

146 The owner or operator of a food establishment subject to the permit requirement  
147 of WAC 246-215-200 or Food Code Paragraph 8-301.11 shall pay to the health officer a  
148 food establishment permit fee as set forth in Table 1, based on the establishment type and  
149 the risk category for the establishment. Where more than one type of food establishment  
150 exists within or as part of another food establishment (for example, a bakery within a  
151 grocery store~~((,))~~ or a deli within a meat market), the owner or operator shall pay the  
152 permit fee for each applicable food establishment type; except that the owner or operator  
153 of a grocery store with no more than two checkout stands, ~~((or))~~ a general food  
154 establishment with no more than two checkout stands and no more than twelve seats for  
155 customers for on-site consumption of food~~((,))~~ or a meat/fish market with no more than  
156 two checkout stands shall pay only the highest applicable risk category permit fee  
157 without being required to obtain a separate permit for each type of food handling activity  
158 at the establishment. For purposes of this section, "highest applicable risk category  
159 permit fee" means the fee corresponding to the highest risk category of food handling  
160 activity at the establishment.

161 **TABLE 1**

162 **Food Establishment Categories and Permit Fees**

---

<b>Type of Food Establishment</b>			<b>Applicable Fee<sup>1</sup></b>
<b>General Food Service<sup>2</sup></b>			
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 1	\$((302.00)) <u>350.00</u>
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 2	\$((503.00)) <u>583.00</u>
Seating Capacity	0 – 12	Risk 3	\$((697.00)) <u>808.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 1	\$((306.00)) <u>354.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 2	\$((510.00)) <u>591.00</u>
Seating Capacity	13 – 50	Risk 3	\$((736.00)) <u>852.00</u>
Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 1	\$((312.00)) <u>362.00</u>
Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 2	\$((536.00)) <u>621.00</u>
Seating Capacity	51 – 150	Risk 3	\$((785.00)) <u>911.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 1	\$((324.00)) <u>376.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 2	\$((548.00)) <u>635.00</u>
Seating Capacity	151 – 250	Risk 3	\$((833.00)) <u>965.00</u>
Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 1	\$((337.00)) <u>390.00</u>
Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 2	\$((552.00)) <u>639.00</u>
Seating Capacity	over 250	Risk 3	\$((870.00)) <u>1,009.00</u>
<b>Limited Food Service</b>			\$((302.00)) <u>350.00</u>
<b>Bakery – No customer seating<sup>3</sup></b>			
Risk 1			\$((302.00)) <u>350.00</u>
Risk 2			\$((503.00)) <u>583.00</u>
Risk 3			\$((697.00)) <u>808.00</u>
<b>Bed and Breakfast Operation</b>			\$((302.00)) <u>350.00</u>

---

**Grocery Store – No customer seating<sup>3</sup>**

Risk 1	\$((302.00)) <u>350.00</u>
Risk 2	\$((503.00)) <u>583.00</u>
((Risk 3	\$697.00))

**Catering operation**

Risk 1	\$((302.00)) <u>350.00</u>
Risk 2	\$((503.00)) <u>583.00</u>
Risk 3	\$((697.00)) <u>808.00</u>

**Meat/Fish Market** \$((567.00)) 657.00

**Vending Machine** \$((302.00)) 350.00

**Mobile Food Service**

Risk 1	\$((302.00)) <u>350.00</u>
Risk 2	\$((503.00)) <u>583.00</u>
Risk 3	\$((697.00)) <u>808.00</u>

**Nonprofit Institution**

Risk 1	(((\$151.00)) <u>To be determined by future rule of the board of health.</u>
Risk 2	(((\$252.00)) <u>To be determined by future rule of the board of health.</u>
Risk 3	(((\$348.00)) <u>To be determined by future rule of the board of health.</u>

**School Kitchen<sup>4</sup>**

Risk 2	(((\$252.00)) <u>To be determined by</u>
--------	--



	<u>future rule of the board of health.</u>
Risk 3	(( <del>\$348.00</del> )) <u>To be determined by</u> <u>future rule of the board of health.</u>
<b>Seasonal Food Establishment<sup>6</sup></b>	One-half the applicable annual permit fee
<b>Temporary Food Establishment<sup>5</sup></b>	
Low Risk	\$(( <del>193.00</del> )) <u>224.00</u>
High Risk	\$(( <del>201.00</del> )) <u>233.00</u>

163 Footnotes to Table 1:

164 1. All food establishment permit fees set forth in this table are annual fees, except those  
165 for temporary food establishments (including temporary nonprofit institution food  
166 establishments) and seasonal food establishments.

167 2. General food service includes a grocery store or bakery offering seating for on-site  
168 consumption of food.

169 3. A bakery or grocery store offering seating for on-site consumption of food shall be  
170 classified as a general food service establishment.

171 4. A school kitchen is designated as either Risk 2 or Risk 3, not Risk 1.

172 5. A temporary food establishment is designated as either Low Risk or High Risk.

173 ~~(B-)~~ 6. The applicant for a seasonal food establishment permit, or a food establishment  
174 that is to be operated no longer than any period of six consecutive months, shall pay one-half the  
175 applicable annual permit fee specified in Table 1, above.

176 SECTION 4. R&R 05-05, Sections 15, 21, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39 and 40, and BOH  
177 2.10.040 are each hereby amended to read as follows:

178 **Plan review fees.**

179 **Part 1 — Plan Review Fees.**

180

**Effective Through December 31, ~~((2005))~~ 2009.**

181

The owner or operator of a food establishment shall pay to the health officer plan

182

review fees for reviewing plans and specifications, conducting preoperational inspections

183

and providing consultation, as follows:

- |    |   |   |
|----|---|---|
| A. | New construction  | \$ <del>((412.00))</del> <u>694.00 base fee plus \$173.00 per hour for each hour after four hours</u>             |
| B. | Remodel   | \$ <del>((359.00))</del> <u>520.00 base fee plus \$173.00 per hour for each hour after three hours</u>            |
| C. | Two <del>((2))</del> or more plan reviews for one facility  | \$ <del>((255.00))</del> <u>520.00 base fee plus \$173.00 per hour for each hour after four hours</u>             |
| D. | Plan resubmittal  | \$ <del>((270.00))</del> <u>173.00 per hour</u>   |
| E. | Subsequent <del>((pre-occupancies))</del> <u>preoccupancies, on-site inspection</u> <del>((prior to))</del> <u>before plan submittal, or on-site inspection</u> when no plan review is required | \$ <del>((100.00 per activity))</del> <u>347.00 base fee plus \$173.00 per hour for each hour after two hours</u> |
| F. | Temporary food establishment (all categories)   | \$25 per review   |

---

G.	<u>Change to mobile or limited food service establishment</u>	<u>\$347.00 base fee plus \$173.00 per hour for each hour after two hours</u>
----	---	---

184

**Part 2 — Plan Review Fees.**

185

**Effective January 1, ~~(2006)~~ 2010, Through December 31, ~~(2006)~~ 2010.**

186

The owner or operator of a food establishment shall pay to the health officer plan

187

review fees for reviewing plans and specifications, conducting preoperational inspections

188

and providing consultation, as follows:

A.	New construction	<del>\$(432.00)</del> <u>728.00 base fee plus \$182.00 per hour for each hour after four hours</u>
B.	Remodel	<del>\$(377.00)</del> <u>546.00 base fee plus \$182.00 per hour for each hour after three hours</u>
C.	Two <del>((2))</del> or more plan reviews for one facility	<del>\$(267.00)</del> <u>546.00 base fee plus \$182.00 per hour for each hour after four hours</u>
D.	Plan resubmittal	<del>\$(283.00)</del> <u>182.00 per hour</u>
E.	Subsequent <del>((pre-occupancies))</del>	<del>\$(100.00 per activity))</del>

---

	<u>preoccupancies, on-site inspection ((prior to))</u>	<u>364.00 base fee plus</u>
	<u>before plan submittal, or on-site inspection</u>	<u>\$182.00 per hour for each</u>
	<u>when no plan review is required</u>	<u>hour after two hours</u>
F.	Temporary food establishment (all categories)	\$25.00 per review
G.	<u>Change to mobile or limited food service</u>	<u>\$364.00 base fee plus</u>
	<u>establishment</u>	<u>\$182.00 per hour for each</u>
		<u>hour after two hours</u>

189

**Part 3 — Plan Review Fees.**

190

**Effective January 1, ((2007)) 2011, Through December 31, ((2007)) 2011.**

191

The owner or operator of a food establishment shall pay to the health officer plan

192

review fees for reviewing plans and specifications, conducting preoperational inspections

193

and providing consultation, as follows:

A.	New construction	<del>\$(454.00))</del> <u>764.00 base</u>
		<u>fee plus \$191.00 per hour</u>
		<u>for each hour after four</u>
		<u>hours</u>
B.	Remodel	<del>\$(396.00))</del> <u>573.00 base</u>
		<u>fee plus \$191.00 per hour</u>
		<u>for each hour after three</u>
		<u>hours</u>
C.	Two <del>((2))</del> or more plan reviews for one	<del>\$(281.00))</del> <u>573.00 base</u>
	facility	<u>fee plus \$191.00 per hour</u>
		<u>for each hour after four</u>

		<u>hours</u>
D.	Plan resubmittal	\$ <del>((297.00))</del> <u>191.00 per hour</u>
E.	Subsequent <del>((pre-occupancies))</del> <u>preoccupancies</u> , on-site inspection <del>((prior to))</del> <u>before</u> plan submittal, or on-site inspection when no plan review is required	\$ <del>((100.00 per activity))</del> <u>382.00 base fee plus</u> <u>\$191.00 per hour for each</u> <u>hour after two hours</u>
F.	Temporary food establishment (all categories)	\$25.00 per review
G.	<u>Change to mobile or limited food service</u> <u>establishment</u>	<u>\$382.00 base fee plus</u> <u>\$191.00 per hour for each</u> <u>hour after two hours</u>

194

**Part 4 — Plan Review Fees.**

195

**Effective January 1, ~~((2008))~~ 2012, and Thereafter.**

196

The owner or operator of a food establishment shall pay to the health officer plan

197

review fees for reviewing plans and specifications, conducting preoperational inspections

198

and providing consultation, as follows:

A.	New construction	\$ <del>((477.00))</del> <u>804.00 base</u> <u>fee, plus \$201.00 per hour</u> <u>for each hour after four</u> <u>hours</u>
B.	Remodel	\$ <del>((416.00))</del> <u>603.00 base</u> <u>fee plus \$201.00 per hour</u> <u>for each hour after three</u>

---

		<u>hours</u>
C.	Two <del>((2))</del> or more plan reviews for one facility	<del>\$((295.00))</del> <u>603.00 base fee plus \$201.00 per hour for each hour after four hours</u>
D.	Plan resubmittal	<del>\$((312.00))</del> <u>201.00 per hour</u>
E.	Subsequent <del>((pre-occupancies))</del> <u>preoccupancies</u> , on-site inspection <del>((prior to))</del> <u>before</u> plan submittal, or on-site inspection when no plan review is required	<del>\$((100.00 per activity))</del> <u>402.00 base fee plus \$201.00 per hour for each hour after two hours</u>
F.	Temporary food establishment (all categories)	\$25.00 per review
G.	<u>Change to mobile or limited food service establishment</u>	<u>\$402.00 base fee plus \$201.00 per hour for each hour after two hours</u>

199            SECTION 5. R&R 05-05, Section 22, and BOH 2.10.050 are each hereby  
 200 amended to read as follows:

201            **Late fees.** Notwithstanding the provisions of BOH ~~((€))~~ chapter 2.06 ~~((of this~~  
 202 ~~code))~~, the food establishment owner or operator shall pay the following late fees, as  
 203 applicable:

- A. Annual permit fee payment delinquent by ten to ~~((25))~~ Ten percent of thirty days applicable permit fee.

- B. Annual permit fee payment delinquent by ~~((50))~~ Twenty percent of ~~((more than thirty))~~ thirty-one to sixty days applicable permit fee.
- C. Annual permit fee payment delinquent by more than sixty days Thirty percent of applicable permit fee.
- D. Temporary food establishment permit \$25.00  
application submitted nine to twelve days prior to the event
- ~~((D))~~ Temporary food establishment permit \$50.00  
application submitted three to eight days prior to the event
- E.

204 SECTION 6. R&R 05-05, Sections 15, 23, 41, 42, 43, 44, 45 and 46, and BOH  
205 2.10.060 are each hereby amended to read as follows:

206 **Occupational license and examination fees.**

207 **Part 1 — Occupational License and Examination Fees.**

208 **Effective Through December 31, ~~((2005))~~ 2009.**

209 The occupational license or examination applicant shall pay the following fees, as  
210 applicable, at the time of application submittal for the license or examination:

- A. Meat cutter's license exam \$~~((72.00))~~ 84.00
- B. Meat cutter's license renewal \$~~((50.00))~~ 58.00

211 **Part 2 — Occupational License and Examination Fees.**

212 **Effective January 1, ~~((2006))~~ 2010, Through December 31, ~~((2006))~~ 2010.**

213 The occupational license or examination applicant shall pay the following fees, as  
214 applicable, at the time of application submittal for the license or examination:

A. Meat cutter's license exam \$((76.00)) 87.00

B. Meat cutter's license renewal \$((52.00)) 60.00

215 **Part 3 — Occupational License and Examination Fees.**

216 **Effective January 1, ((2007)) 2011, Through December 31, ((2007)) 2011.**

217 The occupational license or examination applicant shall pay the following fees, as  
218 applicable, at the time of application submittal for the license or examination:

A. Meat cutter's license exam \$((80.00)) 92.00

B. Meat cutter's license renewal \$((55.00)) 63.00

219 **Part 4 — Occupational License and Examination Fees.**

220 **Effective January 1, ((2008)) 2012, and Thereafter.**

221 The occupational license or examination applicant shall pay the following fees, as  
222 applicable, at the time of application submittal for the license or examination:

A. Meat cutter's license exam \$((84.00)) 96.00

B. Meat cutter's license renewal \$((58.00)) 66.00

223 SECTION 7. R&R 91, Section 1 (part), as amended, and BOH 2.10.100 are each  
224 hereby amended to read as follows:

225 **Refunds.**

226 A. A food establishment owner shall receive a refund of a permit fee if:

227 1. A permit is denied;

228 2. A fee has been paid where none is imposed;

229 3. The permit is issued where none is required;

230 4. The permittee never engages in permitted activity due to the denial by any

231 governmental agency to issue a necessary license;



232 5. The applicant for a permanent permit withdraws his or her application before  
233 the permit is issued;

234 6. The applicant for a temporary permit withdraws his or her application more  
235 than fourteen days (~~(prior to)~~) before the event; or

236 7. The food establishment permit has been overpaid by more than the amount of  
237 the refund processing fee (~~(set forth)~~) in BOH (~~(€)~~) chapter 2.06 (~~(of this code)~~);

238 B. Each refund shall be subject to a twenty-five dollar deduction for the cost of  
239 administration.

240 SECTION 8. R&R 03-06, Section 2 (part), as amended, and BOH 2.14.020 are  
241 each hereby amended to read as follows:

242 **Annual (new and renewal) operating permit fees.**

243 **Part 1 – Annual (New and Renewal) Operating Permit Fees.**

244 **Effective Through December 31, (~~(2005)~~) 2009.**

245 The permit fees for solid waste disposal sites, collection/transportation vehicles,  
246 biomedical waste transporters and biomedical waste storage/treatment sites subject to the  
247 fee requirements of Title 10 of this code shall be the annual fees set forth below:

A. Municipal landfill \$~~((149.78))~~ 173.00 base fee plus tonnage fee  
as cited in Section 2.14.040(~~(, as recodified by~~  
~~this rule~~)).

B. Limited purpose landfill \$~~((5,991.00))~~ 6,936.00  
Each additional hour over 40 hours of service,  
not to exceed 60 hours at \$~~((149.78))~~  
173.00/hour (\$~~((8,987.00))~~) 10,403.00).

- C. Inert landfill \$((5,991.00)) 6,936.00
- Each additional hour over 40 hours of service,  
not to exceed 60 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour \$((8,987.00)) 10,403.00.
- D. Compost facility:
1. Yard debris facility \$((11,383.00)) 13,178.00
- Each additional hour over 76 hours of service,  
not to exceed 114 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour \$((17,175.00)) 19,766.00.
2. Facilities composting other feedstocks \$((4,943.00)) 5,722.00
- Each additional hour over 33 hours of service,  
not to exceed 49.5 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour \$((7,414.00)) 8,583.00.
- E. Transfer station \$((5,242.00)) 6,069.00
- Each additional hour over 35 hours of service,  
not to exceed 52.5 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour \$((7,863.00)) 9,103.00.
- F. Permanent MRW collection and storage \$((7,339.00)) 8,496.00  
facility
- Each additional hour over 49 hours of service,  
not to exceed 73.5 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour \$((11,009.00)) 12,744.00.
- G. Material recovery and recycling facility \$((4,194.00)) 4,855.00
- Each additional hour over 28 hours of service,

- not to exceed 42 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour \$((6,291.00)) 7,282.00.
- H. Energy recovery and incineration facility \$((4,194.00)) 4,855.00
- Each additional hour over 28 hours of service,  
not to exceed 42 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour \$((6,291.00)) 7,282.00.
- I. Closed landfill site \$((4,793.00)) 5,548.00
- Each additional hour over 32 hours of service,  
not to exceed 48 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour \$((7,189.00)) 8,323.00.
- J. Solid waste drop box \$((3,295.00)) 3,815.00
- Each additional hour over 22 hours of service,  
not to exceed 33 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour \$((4,943.00)) \$5,722.00.
- K. Land application \$((2,696.00)) 3,121.00
- Each additional hour over 18 hours of service,  
not to exceed 27 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour \$((4,044.00)) 4,682.00.
- L. Collection/transportation vehicle \$((149.78)) 173.00
- per vehicle location plus \$20.00 for each  
vehicle.
- M. Biomedical waste transporter \$((448.00)) 520.00
- Each additional hour over 3 hours of service at

- \$((149.78)) 173.00/hour.
- N. Other solid waste facility (includes  
 biomedical waste storage/treatment sites)      \$((1,797.00)) 2,081.00  
 Each additional hour over 12 hours of service,  
 not to exceed 18 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour (\$((2,696.00)) 3,121.00).
- O. Storage/treatment piles      \$((2,696.00)) 3,121.00  
 Each additional hour over 18 hours of service,  
 not to exceed 27 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour (\$((4,044.00)) 4,682.00).
- P. Surface impoundments and tanks      \$((3,295.00)) 3,815.00  
 Each additional hour over 22 hours of service,  
 not to exceed 33 hours at \$((149.78))  
173.00/hour (\$((4,943)) 5,722.00).
- Q. Review fees for facilities providing  
 notification of exemption from solid  
 waste handling permitting, or other  
 reporting in accordance with Chapter  
 10.12 of this code:
1. Composting facilities      \$((524.00)) 607.00  
 Each additional hour over 3.5 hours at  
 \$((149.78)) 173.00/hour (See Chapter 10.12 of  
 this code, under WAC Section 173-350-  
 220(1)(b), for permit exemption

requirements).

2. Material recovery and recycling facilities \$((~~524.00~~)) 607.00

Each additional hour over 3.5 hours at  
\$((~~149.78~~)) 173.00/hour (See Chapter 10.12 of  
this code, under WAC Sections 173-350-  
210(2) and 173-350-310(2), for permit  
exemption requirements).

3. Storage/treatment piles \$((~~524.00~~)) 607.00

Each additional hour over 3.5 hours at  
\$((~~149.78~~)) 173.00/hour (See Chapter 10.12 of  
this code, under WAC Section 173-350-  
320(1)(e), for permit exemption requirements).

4. Energy recovery and incineration \$((~~524.00~~)) 607.00

facilities

Each additional hour over 3.5 hours at  
\$((~~149.78~~)) 173.00/hour (See Chapter 10.12 of  
this code, under WAC Section 173-350-  
240(1)(c), for permit exemption requirements).

5. Limited moderate risk waste facilities \$((~~524.00~~)) 607.00

Each additional hour over 3.5 hours at  
\$((~~149.78~~)) 173.00/hour (See Chapter 10.12 of  
this code, under WAC Section 173-350-  
360(3), for permit exemption requirements).

6. Mobile systems and collection events:

a. Collection events \$((524.00)) 607.00

Each additional hour over 3.5 hours at  
\$((149.78)) 173.00/hour

b. Mobile systems \$((1,648.00)) 1,907.00

Each additional hour over 11 hours at  
\$((149.78)) \$173.00/hour (See Chapter 10.12  
of this code, under WAC Section 173-350-  
360(2), for permit exemption requirements).

248 **Part 2 – Annual (New and Renewal) Operating Permit Fees.**

249 **Effective January 1, ((2006)) 2010, Through December 31, ((2006)) 2010.**

250 The permit fees for solid waste disposal sites, collection/transportation vehicles,  
251 biomedical waste transporters and biomedical waste storage/treatment sites subject to the  
252 fee requirements of Title 10 of this code shall be the annual fees set forth below:

A. Municipal landfill \$((157.27)) 182.00 base fee  
plus tonnage fee as cited in  
Section 2.14.040((, as recodified  
by this rule)).

B. Limited purpose landfill \$((6,291.00)) 7,280.00  
Each additional hour over 40  
hours of service, not to exceed 60  
hours at \$((157.27)) 182.00/hour  
(\$((9,436.00)) 10,920.00).

C. Inert landfill \$((6,291.00)) 7,280.00

Each additional hour over 40  
 hours of service, not to exceed 60  
 hours at \$((157.27)) 182.00/hour  
 (\$((9,436.00)) 10,920.00).

D. Compost facility:

1. Yard debris facility

\$((11,952.00)) 13,832.00

Each additional hour over 76  
 hours of service, not to exceed 114  
 hours at \$((157.27)) 182.00/hour  
 (\$((17,929.00)) 20,748.00).

2. Facilities composting other feedstocks

\$((5,190.00)) 6,006.00

Each additional hour over 33  
 hours of service, not to exceed  
 49.5 hours at \$((157.27))  
182.00/hour (\$((7,785.00))  
9,009.00).

E. Transfer station

\$((5,504.00)) 6,370.00

Each additional hour over 35  
 hours of service, not to exceed  
 52.5 hours at \$((157.27))  
182.00/hour (\$((8,257.00))  
9,555.00).

F. Permanent MRW collection and storage facility

\$((7,706.00)) 8,918.00

Each additional hour over 49  
 hours of service, not to exceed  
 73.5 hours at \$((157.27))  
182.00/hour \$((11,559.00))  
13,377.00.

G. Material recovery and recycling facility \$((4,404.00)) 5,096.00

Each additional hour over 28  
 hours of service, not to exceed 42  
 hours at \$((157.27)) 182.00/hour  
 \$((6,605.00)) 7,644.00.

H. Energy recovery and incineration facility \$((4,404.00)) 5,096.00

Each additional hour over 28  
 hours of service, not to exceed 42  
 hours at \$((157.27)) 182.00/hour  
 \$((6,605.00)) 7,644.00.

I. Closed landfill site \$((5,033.00)) 5,824.00

Each additional hour over 32  
 hours of service, not to exceed 48  
 hours at \$((157.27)) 182.00/hour  
 \$((7,549.00)) 8,736.00.

J. Solid waste drop box \$((3,460.00)) 4,004.00

Each additional hour over 22  
 hours of service, not to exceed 33



hours at \$((157.27)) 182.00/hour  
\$((5,190.00)) 6,006.00.

K. Land application

\$((2,831.00)) 3,276.00

Each additional hour over 18  
hours of service, not exceed 27  
hours at \$((157.27)) 182.00/hour  
\$((4,246.00)) 4,914.00.

L. Collection/transportation vehicle

\$((157.27)) 182.00

per vehicle location plus \$20.00  
for each vehicle.

M. Biomedical waste transporter

\$((472.00)) 546.00

Each additional hour over 3 hours  
of service at \$((157.27))  
182.00/hour.

N. Other solid waste facility (includes biomedical waste  
storage/treatment sites)

\$((1,887.00)) 2,184.00

Each additional hour over 12  
hours of service, not to exceed 18  
hours at \$((157.27)) 182.00/hour  
\$((2,831.00)) 3,618.00.

O. Storage/treatment piles

\$((2,831.00)) 3,276.00

Each additional hour over 18  
hours of service, not to exceed 27  
hours at \$((157.27)) 182.00/hour

